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Rating

United Capital Bank

Best Bank in Sudan in Terms of
Large Corporation Financing

* United Capital Bank (UCB) was assigned in 2015 and 2016 Investment Grade National
Scale Rating from Islamic International Rating Agency (IIRA) in Bahrain .

* United Capital Bank (UCB) was assigned in year 2017 National Scale Rating (BBB) for long-
term and AB rating for short-term from Capital Intelligence (Cl) in Cyprus as first bank in
Sudan to be rated by CI.
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Arab Banks Awards
& Commendations of Excellence 2017
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United Capital Bank

Hax won the wward for

Wit Wank i Suban i Terms of Large Corporation Financing

* United Capital Bank (UCB) won the award of Best Project Finance Team in Sudan in year
2015 from Capital Finance International (CFl) Magazine which issued in Britain.

e United Capital Bank (UCB) own the award of the Best Bank in Sudan in Terms of Large
Corporation Financing in year 2017 from World Union of Arab Bankers in cooperation with
the Union of Arab Banks, Beirut - Lebanon.
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To be regarded as one of leading
banks, providing excellent corporate
banking services, and contributing to
the development of the national econ-

omy.
To offer clients excellent services.

To continuously strife for development.

Provide innovative financial solutions
to complex financing requirements.

Provide high quality banking services.

Arranging syndications that tailered
to meet the financing requirements of
the large production projects.

Provide financing for projects with
social dimension and micro finance
as part of the bank’s corporate social
responsibility.

Finance foreign trade and cultivate
banking relationships with local &
foreign banks.

Maximizing return to shareholders and
partners.

Our values

Pioneership
Professionalism
Transparency

Integrity

Loyalty and Commitment
Excellence

Cooperation & Team Work
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Chairman’s Report to the 13th

Annual Ordinary General Assembly Meeting
Khartoum, April 25, 2018

Introduction:

It gives me great pleasure to welcome you to the 13th Annual Ordinary General Assembly
Meeting of United Capital Bank, which will discuss the items stated on the Agenda with
emphasis on the Bank's Financial Statements for the year 2017.

During the year 2017 the Sudanese Economy encountered various difficulties , which can be
summarized as follows :

e Continuing devaluation of the local currency versus foreign currencies in the parallel
market, in spite of the Government's efforts to control such deterioration.

e Devaluation of local currency by adding a ratio in the range of 123% to the official rate as
a bonus to the dealers selling and buying foreign currencies to the banks to minimize the
gap between the official rate and the parallel rate in an attempt to attract more foreign
currency resources to the banking system.

e Lack of foreign currency resources required to meet the increasing demand of the economy.
e Partial lifting of subsidy granted to some essential goods such as fuel and medicines.

e Difficulty in dealing with foreign banks , in spite of lifting the economic and commercial
American Sanction.

* In spite of the reduction in the rate of inflation from 32.9% at beginning of 2017 to 25.2%,
still this is considered relatively high

In spite of all these challenges, the budget performance for the year 2017 showed a significant
improvement in some macroeconomic indicators which can be summarized in the following:

e GDP grew from 4.9% in 2016 to 5.7% in 2017- an increase of 16.3%.
* |Inflation rate by end of 2017 was 25.2% compared to 30.5% in December 2016

e The official exchange rate of SDG against USD at December 2017 was SDG 7.0154
compared to SDG 7.0100 at December 2016.

* Money supply including cash and quasi — cash has increased to SDG 203.4 Billion in
December 2017 compared to SDG 120.8 Billion in 2016 - an increase of 68.4 % due to the
increase in demand deposits from SDG 33.5 billion at December 2016 to SDG 59.5 billion
at December 2017 - an increase of SDG 26 billion- an increase of 77.6% and an increase
in quasi cash from SDG 48,627 billion in 2016 to SDG 82,367 billion in 2017 - an increase
of 69.4%.

The Government has started to execute an economic reform program (named the Five-Year
Program) during the period 2015 - 2019 as an extension to the Three-Year Program which
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resulted in the partial lifting of the fuel subsidy) . The Five-Year Program approved by the
Economic Development Sector of the Council of Ministers aims to achieve the following: -

1.

Increasing the GDP growth rate in a sustainable manner in the range of 10% per annum to
achieve sustainable economic growth starting with 6.6% in 2015 to reach a rate of 7.1% at
the end of the program in 2019 which requires increase in production and productivity in
all economic sectors with emphasis on industrial production sector( mining , exploration
and transforming , as a main dynamo to the economic growth).

Introducing new policies and reforms in the foreign trade sector that leads to restoring the
balance between exports and imports and achieving a surplus in the balance of payments.

Increasing the agricultural production growth rate for both farming and livestock at an
annual average rate of 6.8%.

Increasing industrial production during the program period by about 112% with special
focus on transforming manufacture, mining and oil exploration (with the objective of
concentrating on substitute import goods).

Reducing the budget deficit, raising the savings rate and increasing public revenues of the
State from 9.4% of GDP in 2015 to 12.4% in 2019.

It is expected that the volume of aggregate investments of this program will be about SDG
1,069 billion, with an annual average of SDG 214 billion; the average share of the public
sector is expected to be about 17%, while the share of the local and foreign private sectors
are expected to be about 83 %, which confirms the role of the private sector in leading the
economic growth during the program period.

Significant developments and features of the Sudanese Economy in the period after
lifting of sanctions :

Development in infrastructure of the Sudanese Economy which helps in launching its
management in an ideal way.

Big change at the economic level due to balancing the foreign police the State.

Co —operation with foreign sides that have relation with the economic file after lifting of
sanctions.

Political movement to release Sudan from the list of countries sponsoring terrorism ,

A big gap in foreign resources that leads to rise in inflation rate and devaluation in SDG
against foreign currencies.

Reduction in deficit of Trade Scale in 2017
Increase in export and decrease in imports

Orientation towards supporting local production infrastructure as there are priorities to oil,
wheat and cotton sectors.

Reduction of government expenditure.

Change in Central Bank of Sudan policies pertaining to gold purchase and the attempt to
bridge the gap between official and parallel rates against US dollar to maintain balance in
exchange rate.

(o) 13



Annual Report 2017

Important Achievements of the Bank During the Year 2017 :

In spite of the difficulties that faced the economy in general and the banking sector in particular
during the year 2017, the Bank maintained its position in the field of financing large corporate
and strategic projects in addition to arranging and managing syndicated financing. Major
achievements can be summarized in the following:-

First : Commercial Financing:

The Bank continued its activities in providing commercial financing with special emphasis on
export financing such as gold, livestock and gum Arabic in addition to financing the provision
of agricultural and industrial inputs for the Bank's customers. The total value of letters of credit
issued during the year by the Bank was about Euro 7.5million compared to Euro 11 million in
last year. The Bank’s customers exported about Euro 88 million compared to Euro 120 million
during last year.

Second : Arrangement and Management of Syndicated Facilities :

At present, the Bank manages two long-term syndicated financing facilities for White Nile
Sugar Company and the Gazeira Scheme. During the year, the Bank also managed, for the
forth time consecutively , a new syndication for financing the cultivation and export of cotton
for the season 2016-2017 in the irrigated agricultural schemes. 28 banks have participated in
this syndication for a total amount of about SDG 530 million.

Third: Management of guarantees to banking institutions:

The Bank has signed a triple guarantee management agreement in 2016 with the African
Export and Import Bank and the Sudanese Cotton Company Limited to supervise the produced
cotton stock through agricultural finance portfolio which were managed a by the Bank for a
stock value of US Dollar 124 million for African Import and Export Bank as a beneficiary. In view
of this agreement the Bank will supervise the inventory of cotton transportation and insurance
thereon besides export procedures , receipt of commission for the Bank. This agreement will
continue for five years subject to renewal.

Fourth : Vertical Expansion :

As you know , the Bank has 3 branches and it was expected to be increased to 4 branches
during 2018, but the Bank has postponed this move because the Bank is keen on slow and well
planned organic growth in a manner that facilitates achieving its role in the field of corporate
finance. In this regard, the Bank is currently studying banking expansion options either to
establish new branches or opening cash offices in the customers’ premises with the objective
to attract more current and investment deposits. During this year , the Bank has opened two
windows in Sudatel Company and AlAhfad Girl University

In spite of the hard economic problems facing the country, the Bank’s business had not been
largely affected due to the conservative approach adopted by the Bank and this will be
reflected in the financial performance highlighted below :
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Financial Performance of the Bank During the Year:

The Bank’s assets achieved a high degree of returns while keeping a reasonable level of
liquidity . Net income from finance and investment was SDG 118 million compared to SDG
78 million during 2016. This attributes to the high profit from finance to customers in spite to
decrease in revenue from investment in securities due to the Bank’s management decision to
gradually de invest Shahama Certificates in the secondary market to strengthen the liquidity
position , as major difficulties were emerging regarding liquidation of Shahama certificates in
the secondary market.

Revenue from banking services amounted to SDG 40 million compared to SDG 33 million
during 2016 - an increase of about 23%.

Net profit after Zakat and Tax increased from about SDG 8 million in 2016 to SDG 26 million
in 2017 an increase of 246% .The main reason for increase in profits compared to last year was
attributed to the following:

1. Increase in profits from finance for about SDG 42 million - an increase of 42% compared to
last year due to increase in profit in addition to the write-back of SDG 8 million pertaining
to profits from a suspended ljara with Sudatel after the full settlement by this company in
March 2017.

2. Booking of about SDG 32 million as extra-ordinary profits as a finance cost reimbursed
from Central Bank of Sudan in January 2017 as they were recorded as expenses in prior
years.

3. Earnings per share in 2017 amounted to 1.1 compared to 0.32 in 2016 as a result of
increase in net profit for the year as mentioned above.

The Bank has obtained a rating of "Fair " at year-end as per the Central Bank of Sudan rating
scale regarding Capital Adequacy, Assets Quality, Earnings Capacity and Liquidity indicators
(CAEL) .

The Bank's revenue was diversified as follows :

Percenta e

R
Revenue from finance to customers 55% 55 % 0%
Revenue from banking services and commission 25 % 28 % (3%)
Reimbursed finance cost 12 % 00 % (12%)
Revenue from securities 01 % 07 % (6%)
Revenue from deposits with banks 07 % 08 % (1%)
Revenue from other investments 00 % 02 % (2%)
Total 100 % 100 %
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Net direct finance portfolio after deduction of retained earnings in 2017 was about SDG 1,365
million compared to SDG 1,226 million in 2016- an increase of 11%. This increase in amount
of the portfolio was due to the increase of finance opportunities that matches with the Bank’s
policy of focusing on export financing and productive projects.

The portfolio is diversified among various economic sectors using a number of Islamic modes
of financing. The total volume of the finance portfolio after adding letters of credit and letters
of guarantee amounted to about SDG 1,567 million. Unpaid finance installments were 9% of
the total portfolio b the end of the year 2017 compared to 14.5% by the end of the year 2016
due to the settlement of default installments of Sudatel Group during the first quarter of this
year.

The Bank's Financial Statements as at end of December 2017 reveals a reasonable degree of
liquidity as reflected in maturities of assets and liabilities below:-

Less than 3 More than a Total
Months Year
923 294 574 331

2,122
Liabilities 1,378 96 140 508 2,122

Assets

In this context, | am pleased to state below the major financial indicators of the Bank during
the years 2012 to 2017 :-

(in SDG millions)

Particular 2012 2013 | 2014 | 2015 | 2016 | 2017
Total Assets 1,504 1,685 1,984 2,008 2,159 2,122
Customers’ Current Accounts & Investment 723 737 975 1,056 1,047 1,353
Deposits
Shareholders’ Equity 381 420 455 469 441 468
Net Finance to Customers after deducting 730 960 1,137 938 1,137 1,197
provisions & undue profits
Net Profit before tax and zakat 87 82 92 73 24 53
Net Profit after tax and zakat 77 61 69 53 8 26
Earnings Per Share 3.2 252 285 221 0.32 1.1

The above table shows an increase in the Bank's assets from about SDG 1,504 million at end
of 2012 to about SDG 2,122 at the end of 2017 -an increase of about 41%. Total shareholders’
equity increased from about SDG 381 million at end of 2012 to about SDG 468 million at the
end of 2017 -an increase of about 23%.

It is worth mentioning that the Bank adheres to and complies with international regularity
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requirements and is keen to follow the Central Bank of Sudan’s directives, International
Accounting Standards and AAIOFI Standards.

Furthermore, the Bank commits to provide the highest degree of transparency in displaying its
financial reports, including all types of risks whether it be financial or operational as required
by best International Standards and Practices.

The Bank pays special attention to training its employees through sending them to attend
specialized training programs inside and outside Sudan .

At the same time, the Bank plays a distinguished social role by paying Zakat to the Bureau
of Zakat and making social contributions to individuals and institutions within it's social
responsibility.

On a special note, it gives me great pleasure to state that the Bank sponsored the youth
competition program called "Mashrouy Pioneer Business Ideas " for the fourth time
consecutively jointly with a number of other sponsors (CTC Company, Coffetea Company
and Sudatel Company) . The aim of the program is to create a competition among young
individuals to come up with ideas for new investment projects that are innovative in nature
and economically viable. This programme was arranged by the British Council and the British
Embassy in Khartoum in collaboration with the Sudanese Young Businessmen Association.

The best 3 projects were awarded cash presents and a trip to the United Kingdom to meet
business entrepreneurs there. In its first , second and third rounds , the program was very
popular among the public and was commented upon in all types of media and economic
sectors. Above all, it was really an added value to the Bank's good reputation.

At the end, | would like to convey, on behalf of the Board of Directors, our thanks and gratitude
to the Central Bank of Sudan for their valued efforts and distinguished supervisory role. We
would like to equally thank all our customers and foreign correspondents for the valuable trust
they bestowed on us.

The Board also wishes to convey its thanks to the Sharia Supervisory Committee for its valued
and prudent guidance in all Sharia issues raised by the Bank and for their continuous assistance
to the Bank’s Management to insure compliance with Sharia rules in the Bank's activities.

Thanks are also extended to the External Auditor for the counsel provided and for making it
possible to issue the Audited Financial Statements in a relatively record time.

The Board records its thanks to the employees of the Bank and the executive management for
their sincere efforts, loyalty and diligence.

Finally, we pray to God for the continued success.

Tarig Hamza Zain El-Abdein

Chairman of the Board of Directors
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Chief Executive Officer &

General Manager’s Report

Economic Events and United Capital Bank
First : Global Economy in 2017

Interim information in the economic reports of the International Monetary Fund expect a rela-
tive improvement in the rate of growth in the Global Economy from 3.4% in 2016 to 3.7% in
2017 and expect to grow up to 3.9% in 2018.

The economic growth varies in different groups of the economy, as the rate of growth exelerts
in some advanced countries due to overcome of the impact of the Global Financial Crisis ,
where the emerging markets grow in a bit slow rate compared to what had been prevailing
before the Global Economic Crisis.

There are a number of challenges facing the Global Economy in the medium term, such as:

- Drastic drop in oil prices and its impact on all countries , exporting and importing
of oil

- Acceleration of population aging so minimizing working force.
- Deformation of rate of growth due to drop down of production per capita

- Increase of receivables in public and private sectors especially in advanced coun-
tries.

- Increase in political unrest in Economic Groups Countries.

All the above mentioned had led to continuation of speckticsm and lack of trust in having
the Global Economy back to what it had been before the Global Financial Crisis at the same
speed and within the foreseeable time frame .

Second : Sudanese Economy in 2017 :

During 2017 the national economy was affected by a number of international, regional and lo-
cal factors. In spite of lifting the economic American Sanctions during the second half of 2017
-imposed on Sudan since 1997 — the economy has never witnessed any improvement as it was
expected for foreign investments to flow and exports to increase, to improve scarcity in foreign
cash resources and devaluation of SDG against foreign currencies in the parallel market.

Also the negative impact of conflicts in oil production areas on royalties to Southern Sudan
State and increase in cost of securing nebouring boarders.

In spite of all these challenges, the performance of budget in 2017 has reflected a touchable
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improvement in the economic benchmark of 2017 summarized as follows:-

. Cash stock was increased to SDG Billion 204 in 2017 compared to SDG Billion
121 in 2016 (an increase of about 68%).
Third: classification and awards for the Bank in 2015

During 2016 the Bank was awarded an Investment Grade rating at the National Scale by the
International Islamic Rating Agency (IIRA) Bahrain.

Also the Bank was awarded an Investment Grade at the national level of BBB in the long term
and an AB degree in the short term by Capital Intelligence in March 2018.

The Bank achieved significant growth during the last few years (2012-2017) as indicated
below (SDG millions):-

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Finance to Customers, Net 1,137 1,137 1,197

—— ------

Customers’ deposits

T o P Pl E P
128 142

Gross Income 138 146 129 213

During this short period, the Bank was able to maintain an excellent customer base in both
deposit placement and financing.
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Total Assets
(SDG MILLION)

Total Assets
(SDG MILLION)

1,504 2012
1,685 2013

1,984 2014
2,008 2015
2,159 2016
2,122 2017

Finance to Customrs(net)
(SDG MILLION)

Finance to Customrs(net)
(SDG MILLION)

730 2012

2013
1,137 2014
938 2015
1137 2016
1,197 2017

N
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Shareholders’Equity
(SDG MILLION)

Shareholders’Equity
(SDG MILLION)

455 2014
469 2015

468 2017

777

Customers’'Deposites 662

(SDG MILLION) 436
341 P8

Customers’'Deposites
(SDG MILLION)

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
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Equity of investment accounts holders
(SDG MILLION)

Equity of investment

accounts holders

Gross Income
(SDG MILLION)

213
Gross Income 138

128
142

Net Profit (before tax & Zakat)
(SDG MILLION)

Net Profit
(before tax & Zakat)
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Management focused during these years on the recruitment of high caliber staff at all levels.
The number of staff increased gradually from 134 at the end of 2012 to 152 at end of 2017.

The organization structure of the Bank constitutes of several departments. Each department
performs its duties in accordance with best practice, at the highest level of professionalism

and in complete co-ordination and teamwork spirit with other departments.
Third: Role of United Capital Bank in social responsibility:
UCB social responsibility is based on commitment to the following objectives:

. Building effective contact bridges with all sectors of society to figure out the
activities that need support to have successful social partnership.

. Laying the foundation of having effective cooperation to execute a number of
activities in the society through sponsorship of main activities in the fields of education,
health, sport, environment and projects targeting people with special needs.

. Participation in philanthropy main activities. The Bank has participation in a
number of activities within social responsibility such as, printing a book of the late art-
ist ElTayib Saleh, and sponsorship a poem book called - Hadaha Metain Al Haraba by
Kamel Abdelmajed and another book by young fine artists , that in support of art, fine
art and culture throughout the country and encouragement of youth entrepreneurship
ideas .The Bank participated in the movie film about late artist Eltayib Saleh called
“Hifinat tamer”.

Also the Bank sponsored the well known program of Mashroui, a pioneer project for
youth interpioneership in concert with the British Embassy, the British Council and the
Union of Young Sudanese Interprenors aiming to spreading the idea of entrepreneur-
ship in Sudan.

In addition to the above mentioned the Bank has provided support to the following:
- Sponsorship of orphans and disabled

- Expenses for curing poors and needy citizens

- Rehabilitation of schools and universities ( classes and halls)

- Supporting students and scientific trips

- Bridging nutrition gap in North Darfur State

- Supporting mosques and worship houses

- Printing cultural books

- Supporting civil society organizations

* Payment of blood moneys
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Supporting genus students

Supporting group weeding projects

Supporting South Kordofan Education Mobilization
Supporting Hejleeg Rehabilitation Mobilization
Supporting summer work projects

Supporting Independence Day Festival

Supporting Ramadan breakfasts

As example, the Bank financed the social impact projects for the following:-

Economic Housing Finance Portfolio Financing housing for limited income groups
North Kordofan State Extension of Electricity Network to citizens

26
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AUDITORS" REPORT

INDE PENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To The Shareholders of United Capital Bank ( U.C, )
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of United Capital
Bank ( U.C.B ) (the Bank) and its subsidiaries { together * the Group) page (2) o {36).Which
comprize the Consolidated Statement of Finaneial Position as at 31, December 2017 Con-
solvdated Statement Uf Income, the Consolidated Statement f{f Cash Flows , the Consoli-
dated Srarement of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Restricted
{nvestments , for the year for then ended | and notes, comprising bases of preparation note
(2} significami accounting policies and other explanatory information notes (3)

fn our opinion, the accompanying Consolidated financial statements present Sairly, in all
material respects, the Consolidated Financial Position af the Group as at 31 December 2017
and its Consolidated Financial Performance | its Consolidated Cash Flows , Changes in Eq-
wity and the Consolidated of changes in Restricted Invesiments for the vear then ended in ac-
cordance with Financial Accounting Standards (FAS) fssued by the Accounting and Auditing
Organization for Istamic Financial Insditutions (AAQIFI), the Shariah rules and principles
as determined by the Shariah Supervisory Committee of the Bank and the applicable regula-
rions af the Central Bank of Sudan. For matters where no AAOIFI standards exist, the Bank
applies the relevant Internavional Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Rasis for Opinion

W conducted our audit in accordance with fnternational Standards on Aucliting (15A). Our
responsibifities under those standards are further deseribed in the Auditors’ Responsibility
Jor the Audit of the Consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are indepen-
dent af the group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accoun-
tants, Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant ro our andit of the Bank's Consolidated financial statemenis in
the Republic of Sudan, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the JESBA Code. We believe thar the awdit evidence we have
oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinien,
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Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in owr professional judgment, were aof most
significance in our audit of the Consolidaied financial statements of the current vear,
These matters where addressed in the context of owr audit of the Consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a sepa-
Fate opinion on these matiers,

Impairment losses on financial portfolio

Finance to customers (Deferred sales receivables Murabaha receivables, Istisna receiv-
ables Lara and Staff Financing) Total deferred sales receivables together with Mudaraba
& Musharaka which form total finance to customers representing 56 4% of the group’s
total asseis as at 31 December 2007 | hence as material portion of the Censolidaied
statement of financial position it has been considered  as a key audit marier . The Bank
reviews its financing portfolio on a monthly basis in terms of the collection Srowm cus-
fomers to determing if there is any delay in payments or any decrease in the valwe of the
perijolic or the fiture cash flows witich reguires the establisiment of a spectfic provision,
« The amount of provision is calculated in accordance with the divectives of the Central
Bunk of Sucan

In addition and in accordance with the Cenrral Bank of Sudan instructions , minimum
general provisien of 1% is made on all finance balance not subject to specific pravisions
- Qur audit procedures in this area inclided, among others understanding the narure of
the customers financing process and the internal control system adopied by the bank . We
tested the key controls over the credit grading and monitoring process , we tested the gov-
ernance controls aver the impairment processes, including the continuous re-assessment
by group to ascertain that impairment polices remain appropriate for the risk within the
group s financing asseis portfolio and that , the impairment process is based on historical
payment performance of cach mode of finance within the portfolio | and the amownt of
provision is caleulated in accordance with the directives of the Central Bank of Sudan .
Random sample of customer's finance from each mode of finunce was subjected to audir
review .Our audit procedures included review of finance fosses computations and how the
aronts af provisions were caleulated and that they are in accordance with the directives
of the Central Bank of Sudan .

We assessed adequacy of the group's disclosure in relarion 1o impairment losses on finane-
ing porifolio by reference to the requirements of Central Bank of Sudan and the AADIFI
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Investment securities

The investment securitics held by the bank representing 23% of the group's total assets as
at 31 December 2007 fall inte the equity - npe caregory as classified by the bank.
fnvestment in securities are broadly classified into debt-type instruments where the invest-
ment is managed on a contractual yield basis and equitv- type investmenis which include
instruments that evidence a residual interest in the ner assets of the invesiee entity .

The Bank exercises fudgment to consider impairment on equity - type instriments through
equity . This includes determination of a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
below its cost . In making this judgment . the Bank evaluates other factors including the
narmal volatility in securities price, the financial heath of the investee | indusiry sector
performance aned cash flows .

As It has been considered as one of the key audit matters it was subject to audit procedures
- We evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of the controls over im.
pairment data and calewlations 1o ensure that | the Bank exercises judgment to consider
impairntent on equity- type instriments through equiry .

We tested the consistency of key assumptions of the bank s asvessment of significant de-
cline in the fair value below its cost . In making this judgment , we evaluated the other
Jactors cansidered by the Bank including the normal volatilicy in securities price , the
Simancial health of the investee | industry sector performance and cash flows . We tested
the consisiency of key assumptions and compared them to the measures set by the bank
- We evaluaied whether the disclosures within the statements appropriately address the
significant uncertainties that exist and found these 1o be reasonable

Risk management

We focused on this area becawse risk is considered ax an integral pari of the bank’s busi-
ness and is critical to the bank s continuing success and profitability , Our audit procedires
were direcied 1o the various types of risks ax classified by the bank note 35 ( profir rate
risk , Credit risk | liguidity risk | Foreign currency risk , Marker risk . Risk of managing
chslomers' fnvesiment . crrned ﬂpe'l"ﬂ'ﬁﬂﬂaf anel other Fisk ) . Our audit review was o ax-
sess the prudential measures taken by the bank and these charged with governance
fo ensure the bank adopts , maintains and applies appropriate risk management poli-
clesand procedures to minimize the negative effect of these risk, Our review covered the
adeguacy of disclosure |
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Foreign currency risk

Due 1o fluctuarions of exchange rare and the devalvation of Sudanese pound during the
accounting period foreign currency risk has been considered as a key audit marter . Our
audit procedures  were focusing on foreign currency risk,

To assess the level of exposure of the bank and the measures taken by the bank to wonitor
and ensure that the exposure is kept at an acceprable level . Our audit review was extended
to observe that the special directives of the Central Bank of Sudan as regard the treatment
of foreign currencies revaluation gains have been adoptéd | In accordance with the direc-
tives of the Central Bank of Sudan. the foreign currencies revaluation gains must be deducted
from retained earnings and be disclosed in a scparate line in the statement of financial position.
When these gains become realized they must be transferred directly 1o retained camings. How-
ever, the bank has been directed by the Central Bank of Sudan o reserve the transaction made last
vear of which the foreign currencies revaluation gains (generated in previous years) were credited
to retained earmings until new directives are issued in this regard.

Related Party Transactions

As the related parties as defined by the bank comprise the major shareholders , members
af the Board of Director . entities controlled by them or under their joint control
. associares , key management personal and their close family members they have been
considered to be a key audit matter | Our audit  procedures in this respect included |
amaong others  understanding the natire of the related party’s | as defined by the bank
authority | financing process and the fnternal control system adopted by the Bank, We
tested the key controls over the graming and menitoring process , we fested the gover-
nance controls aver the related party transaction | to ascension adherence by the Group
to adopt the Bank policies and procedures as regard related party treatment . Our audit
procedures were focused on the transaciions carried with the related parties to observe
that they were in the normal conrse of business , they comply with the direciives of the
central Bank af Sudan and that they are appropriately disclosed in financial Statements.

Responsibility of United Capital Banks management

United Capital Bank's management is responsible for the preparation and fair presenta-
tion of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with FAS issued by AAOIF,
and the CBOS regulations, and for such internal control as the Board of Directors deter-
mines is necessary to enable the preparaiion of the consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due 1o frawd or errer,

In preparing the consolidared financial statements, United Capital Bank's managenent
is respongible for assessing the Group ability to continue as a going concern, disclos-
ing, as applicable, martters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
gecounting unless the Board of Directars either intends to lguidate the Group or cease
aperations, or has ne realistie alternative bur to do so.
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Aunditor’s responsibilities for the Audit of the conselidated financial statements

Chir abjectives is to olwain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, wether due to fravd or error,
anel to isswe an anditors report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance s a high level af assurance, but it is not @ guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISA swill alwavs detect a material misstatement when it ex-
isty. Misstatements can arise from fravd or error and considered material if, individually
or in the aggregaie, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisiony
af users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 54, we exercise professional judgmenr and main-
tain professional skepricism throughout the audic. We also.

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated financial state-
ments, whether due fo frand or error; design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risk, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basiy
Jor our apinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulring frovm frawd is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, inten-
tHonal omission, misrepresentation or averride af internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of the internal control relevant to the audit in erder to desipn audit e
cedures that are apprapriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpese of expressing an apiion
ot the effectiveness of the Group's internal comtrol.

* Evaluate the appropriateness ef geconnting extinares and relared disclosures made by the Board
of Directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basiy of ac-
cominting and, based on the awdit evidence obrained , whether material unceriatngy exisis related o
evenis or conditions thai may cast significarnt dowbt on the Group s abilit 1o continue as a going
corcern. [f we conclide thar a material wncertatuly exists, we are required to draw attention in ene
auditor's report o the related diselosures in the consolidared finanelal statements or, if such dis-
closures are inadequate, fo modify our opinion . Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained wp io the date of our audit’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as BOINE conceri.

* Evaluate the everall presentation, structiere and contenr of the consolidated financial scatenenss
represent the wnderiying transactions and events in a manner thar achieves fair preseniation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audic evidence regarding the financial information of the enlities
or biesiness activities within the Group to express an opinfon on the consolidated financial state-
menes. We are responsible for the divecrion, supervivion and performance of the Group's andis, We
remain solely responsible for owe awdit opinion,
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope ad timing of the awdit and significant audit findings, include any significant defi-
eiercies in internal control that we idemify during our audir,

We alse provide thase charged with governance with a siatement that we have compiled with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relation-
ships and other natiers that may reasonably be thought 1o bear on our independence, and where
applicetle, related safepuards,

From the matters comminicated with those charged with gevernunce, we determine those marters
that were of mest significance in the andit of the consolidated firancial statements af the current
year and are therefore the key audit matiers. We describe these matters in our aunditer's report,
unless law or regulations precindes public disclosire aboui the matter or wien, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that matter should mar be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of deing so wanld reasonably be expected to oitweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

As regard compliance with compantes” Ordirance 2015 requirement.-

17 We have obtained alf the information and explanations we considered necessary for the pur-
pases our audis,

2! The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared in all material respects in we-
cordance with companies ' ordinance 2005 | financial Accounting Standeards (FAS) issieed by the
Accouniing and Auditing Crganization for [slamic Financial nstitutions {AAOIEL), the sharialt
rules and principles as determined by the shariah supervisory committee of the bank and the ap-
plicable regulations of the Central Bank of Sudan .

3 The Bank has maintained proper accounting records and fts Consolidated financial state-
RIS are i dgrecient therewith,

4/ The investment secarities held e Bank note (6} comprise the following Cquiiv-1vpe instrinment
{Securities at fair valwe through equity, Secaritics carried ai cost |

5/ Nete (31} shows balances with related parities arising commercial transactions in the mormal
conrse of business at an arm'’s length basis and disclosed in the consalidared financial State-
menis

' We are nor aware of any vielations of the provisions of the Central Bank of Sudan instruc-
tiens, Or Compeies Ordinance 2005 or finaneial Aceonnting Standards occurred during the vear
wiltich imight have hod a material adverse effect on the iddated financial position or
performance as and for the vear ended 31 Decem

Mohamed Swliman Haggar FOCA
Partner
Muohamed Suliman Haggar & Co.

Date : 4/4/2018
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UNITED CAPITAL BANK

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
At December 31, 2007

17 2016
ASSETS il SDG SDG
Cash and balances with banks and financial institutions 4 456.313.782 484, 712477
Investments with banks and financial institutions 5 328,093,000 314,320,040
Investments in securitics L] 48,211,214 96,548,703
Finance 1o customers, nei T 1.196,668,131 1.136.951.269
Other investments 8 - -
Other assets 9 25608115 58.995.805
Property and equipment, net 10 66, 694,669 67,695,502
TOTAL ASSETS 2.121,.588.9211 2.159,223,758

LIABILITIES, EQUITY OF UNRESTRICTED INVESTMENT
ACCOUNT HOLDERS AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

LIABILITIES

Due 1o banks and financial institutions 11 81,907,686 164,875,900
Customers’ deposils 12 776,766,420 661,577,655
Other Linkalities 13 219,291,412 506,704.005
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1.077.965.518 1.333.157.560
EQUITY OF UNRESTRICTED INVESTMENT

ACCOUNT HOLDERS

Invesiment deposits -banks and fAnancial institutions 14 152,703,002 230,845,019
Investment deposits-other 15 323.221.082 154,007,931
TOTAL EQUITY OF UNRESTRICTED INVESTMENT 575,924,084 384,942,950
ACCOUNT HOLDERS

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Share capital 16 240,000,000 240,000, CHMD
Share premium 17 4. 500,000 4,500,000
Statutory reserve 18 40,571,337 37935448
Fair value reserve 151.714 16177
Foreign currencics revaluation reserve 19 57.047.992 .
Retained eamings 79.301.473 158.648.713
Proposed dividends 20 45,600,000 =
Total Sharcholders' equity of the parent company 467.672.916 441,100,338
Mon-controlling interest 26.393 22910
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 467,699,309 441,123,248
TOTAL LIABILITIES, EQUITY OF UNRESTRICTED

INVESTMENT ACCOUNT HOLDERS AND 2,121.588.911 2.159,223,758
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES iz 679875648 072,748,942

The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of

Directors on March 08, 2018,
Hil‘méﬂ Elabdein

Ebnirmnn

Mansour OQaiser Breish,
Vice-Chalrman

CED

The am:n:buun’am I‘{a 394€rma.|1 imtegral part of these consolidssed fnancial LlJlmi:ﬂl-i-
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UNITED CAPITAL BANK

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
Faor the year ended December 31, 2007

Nates 207 2016
S S0
INCOME FROM :
Investments with banks and financial institutions 21 16,809,884 13,469,879
Investments in securities 12 3.262.093 13,196,463
Finance o customers 23 141.154.969 99.317.729
Other investmenis = 3968550
Total income from financing and investments 161.226.946 129.952.621
Less: Retam to unrestricted investment account holders 24 (43.195,90%) (46.928.623)
Less : Finance Cost - (4.470.868)
Net income from investments and financing 118.031,037 78,553,130
Fee income 25 40,254 837 32836642
Re-imbursement of finance cost 16 32,227.324 -
Foreign exchange gain, net 27 22,810.850 17.516,083
Total operating income 213.324.048 128905855
EXPENSES
Staff cost (60,273,082} (31,719,151}
General and administrative expenses 28 (28.538,254) (24,0659, 35%)
Depreciation 10 {5.275.554) {4.690,279)
Provision for finance losses 7.1.3 (68.284.050) (37.857.914)
Provision for impairment 1,920,000 {6.805,472)
Total operating expenses (160.450,940) [104.942.175)
Mt operating profit before zakat and income tax 52.873.108 23,963,680
Zakat expense (3,279.784) (6. 020, 287)
Income tax expense {23,152.800) (10, 195.306)
MNet profit 26,440,524 T.647.087
Less: net profit attributable 1o non-controlling imerest (3.483) [3.492)
Mt profit attributable to equity holders of the parent company 26.437.041 7.643,595
Earni r share ] 7 29 1.10 )
ngs pe /'//)4 % IR
Yousif Ahmed E}-Tinay Mansour Qaiser Bteish| | Tarig Hamza Zain Elabdein
CEO Vice-Chairman Chairmas—
L —
"
[y ( ~
The attached notes 1 1o 39 form an integral pant of these coasolidated financial stalements. -
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UNITED CAPITAL BANK

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Far the year ended December 31, 2017

Notes

CASH FLOWS FROM OFPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit for the year

Adjustments to reconcile net profie:
Depreciation and amortization

Fakat

Income tax

Provision for staff end of service benefits
Provision for finance losses

Provision for staff bonus

Return 1o unrestricted investment account holders
(Gain) boss on disposal of property and equipment

Net cash Mow from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of investments

Proceeds from sale of investment

Acquisition of property and equipment

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Deferred sales receivables

Mudaraba financing

Musharaka financing

Net cash flow from investment activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net (increase)ldecrease in operating asscls:
Statuory cash reserve

Cash margin on LCs & LGs

Other assets

Due 1o banks and financial institutions

Customers deposits

Other liabilitics

Met movement in non-controlling interest

Divadends paid

Net increase in equity of unrestricted investment accounts
Net cash Aow from financing activities

Net increase in cash & cash cquivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
is at end of the year 30

Mansour Qaiser Bteish
Viee-Chairman

The attached notes 1 1o 39 form an integral pan of these consolidated financial statements.

4

27 2016
SDG SDG
26,437,041 T.643.595
5,275,554 4,890,279
3,279,784 6.121,287
23.152.300 10,195,306
4,779.233 2,044,440
66,364,050 44,263,386
9,530,471 4,237,880
43,195.909 46,928,623
822,046 (13.186)
(12.654.472) 11,939,025}
61,127.500 326,223,000
(6.198.107) (4.303.443)
1,101,339 316,168
[225.041.134) (2936111
(66.315.329) (131679.443)
95,140,562 (123.925.007)
(61,930,448 (41,405,034
(8,906,225} 4,379,757
33,387.690 21,079,423
(B2.968.214) (7628054}
115,188,765 225,268,867
i258,019,892) 168,664,077
3,484 3493
- 136,000,000}
_1115.459.615) . 72.941.598
{85.462.368) 261,009,262
_mdm; M‘
eD25040.586 __TI0S00904,

Tarig Hamza Zain Elabdein

Chairman
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UNITED CAPITAL BANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended December 31, 2017

1. INCORPORATION AND ACTIVITIES

United Capital Bank ( the Bank ) is a public limited company registered in the Republic of Sudan on November 25, 2007
under the Companies’ Ordinance of 1925 . The Bank was initially registered on August 8, 2005 as a private limited
company and commenced banking operations on August 1, 2006.

The Bank's shares were listed for trading at the Khartoum Stock Exchange with effect from November 25, 2007.

The Bank is engaged in providing a full range of Islamic banking services to corporate and institutional customers.

The Bank operates through four branches in the Republic of Sudan. The registered office is located at Building No. 411,
Square 65, Mamoun Behairy Street, Khartoum East, Post Office Box 8210, Al-Amaarat, Khartoum, Sudan. Fax no.
00249 183 235 000, web site : www.bankalmal.net.

The Bank owns 99% of the shares of Al-Mal United for Securities Company Limited (Al-Mal), which was registered with
the Company Registrar and started operations in April 2008. Al-Mal provides financial investment and brokerage services
and is a licensed dealer at the Khartoum Stock Exchange. The Bank also owns 99% of the shares of Al-Mawarid
Investment Company Limited (Al-Mawarid), which was registered with the Company Registrar in January 2009 and
started operations in April 1, 2009. Al-Mawarid is licensed to invest in real estate development and various other

economic sectors.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards (FAS) issued by the
Accounting and Auditing Organization for Islamic Financial Institutions (AAOIFI), the Shariah rules and principles as
determined by the Shariah Supervisory Committee of the Bank and the applicable regulations of the Central Bank of
Sudan. In accordance with the requirement of AAOIFI, for matters where no AAOIFI standards exist, the Bank applies the

relevant International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

2.2 Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the historical cost concept except for the re-measurement at fair

value of investment securities carried at fair value through income statement and equity.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Sudanese Pounds (SDG) which is the Bank's functional and

presentation currency.

2.4 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries , Almal United
Company Limited and Almawarid Investment Co. Ltd. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the

same reporting year as that of the Bank , using consistent accounting policies.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Bank obtains control, and
continues to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

The attached notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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UNITED CAPITAL BANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended December 31, 2017

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

2.4 Basis of consolidation (continued)

All inter-company balances, transactions, income and expenses arising from inter-company transactions are eliminated in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.

Non-controlling interest represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets not owned by the Bank and are presented
separately in the income statement and within the equity in the consolidated statement of the financial position, separate
from parent shareholders' equity.

2.5 Critical accounting judgments and estimates

In the application of the Bank’s accounting policies, management is required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the

revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

2.5.1 Impairment losses on financing portfolio

The Bank reviews its financing portfolio on a monthly basis in terms of the collection from customers to determine if there
is any delay in payments or any decrease in the value of the portfolio or the future cash flows which requires the
establishment of a specific provision.

The amount of provision is calculated in accordance with the directives of the Central Bank of Sudan.

In addition , in accordance with the Central Bank of Sudan instructions , minimum general provision of 1% is made on all

finance balances not subject to specific provisions.

2.5.2 Impairment of equity-type instruments through equity

The Bank exercises judgment to consider impairment on equity-type instruments through equity. This includes
determination of a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost. In making this judgment, the Bank
evaluates other factors including the normal volatility in securities price, the financial health of the investee, industry

sector performance and cash flows.

The attached notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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UNITED CAPITAL BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended December 31, 2017

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

2.5.3 Fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted in an active market

The fair values of financial instruments that are not quoted in an active market are determined by using valuation
techniques such as:

* recent arm’s length market transactions;

* current fair value of an instrument that is substantially the same;

* the expected cash flows discounted at current rates applicable for items with similar terms and risk characteristics.

The determination of the cash flows and discount factors for unquoted equity investments requires significant estimation.
There are a number of investments where this estimation cannot be reliably determined. As a result, these investments are
carried at cost less provision for impairment.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year.

The significant policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below:
3.1 Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization and any impairment loss.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives as follow:

Useful life (years)
e Land & Builing :

— Leasehold land 50
— Bank's Building 40
— Leased Buildings (Lease tenure) 10
e IT equipment 4
e Office equipment, furniture and fixtures 5
®  Motor vehicles 4
e Computer software 5

The assets’ residual values and useful life are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the date of each statement of
financial position. All assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. The carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if

the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

3.2 Impairment and uncollectibility of assets

The carrying amounts of the Bank's financial assets and tangible assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced

to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized immediately in the income statement.

The attached notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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UNITED CAPITAL BANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended December 31, 2017

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.3 Investment in securities

According to FAS 25, investments in securities are broadly classified into debt-type instruments where the investment is
managed on a contractual yield basis; and equity-type investments which include instruments that evidence a residual

interest in the net assets of the investee entity.

The investment securities held by the Bank fall into the equity-type category which are subject to the following policies:

3.3.1 Equity-type instruments at fair value through equity:

Those are instruments which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be sold in response to
needs for liquidity. These are initially recognized at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given, plus transaction
costs. Subsequent to acquisition, these are re-measured at fair value on individual basis. Unrealized gains or losses arising
from a change in the fair value are recognized directly in owner's equity under "fair value reserve" until the investment is
derecognized or determined to be impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recorded in owners'

equity is recognized in the consolidated income statement.

3.3.2 Equity-type instruments carried at cost:

Those are have a quoted market price as they are not listed in the market or do not have an active market or their fair value
cannot be determined in any other appropriate method, are recognized at cost less any impairment in value —if any. Any
gain on such investment is calculated on the lowest profit’s rate distributed in the last three years.

Gain or Loss on these investments is recognized when these investments are disinvested.

3.4 Investments with banks and financial institutions

Placements in investment accounts based on the Mudaraba contract with banks and financial institutions are stated at cost

less provision for impairment, if any.

3.5 Finance to customers

Deferred receivables from Murabaha, Salam,Istisna and Ijarah are stated net of deferred profit, provision for impairment
and profit in suspense- if any.

Participation in syndicated financing with other banks based on the Mudaraba contract is stated at cost less impairment - if
any.

Financing through Musharakah is stated at gross principal amount less any liquidation and provision for impairment- if
any.

3.6 Other financial assets and liabilities

With regard to other financial assets and financial liabilities, fair value is determined based on expected future cash flows
or management’s estimate of the amount at which an asset could be exchanged for cash on an arm’s length basis or a

liability settled to the satisfaction of creditors.

The attached notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended December 31, 2017

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.7 Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash, balances with
the Central Bank of Sudan (excluding statutory cash reserve balances) and investment deposits with banks and other

financial institutions that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash within ninety days.

3.8 Provisions

Provisions, other than impairment or finance loss provisions, are recognized when the Bank has an obligation (legal or
constructive) arising from a past event, and the costs to settle the obligation are both probable and able to be reliably
measured.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date.

3.9 Zakat

Zakat is calculated and provided for, in accordance with the regulations of the Chamber of Zakat which is a Government
Agency responsible for the collection and distribution of Zakat. Zakat is paid in full to the Chamber of Zakat.

3.10 Taxation

The Bank is subject to business profit tax at the rate of 30% of taxable profit. Zakat is allowed as deduction for income
tax purposes.

3.11 Staff end of service benefits

A provision is made for amounts payable to employees for end-of-service benefits, which is calculated in accordance with
the provisions of the Labour Law and the Bank's internal Human Resourse policy.

3.12 Revenue recognition

Income from Murabaha finance is recognized on a time-apportioned basis over the period of the contract based on the
outstanding balance.Assets available for sale after acquisition on the basis of Murabaha to the purchase orderer shall be
measured at their historical cost. In the cases where the assets value declines below cost due to damage, destruction or any
other unfavorable circumstances, such a decline shall be reflected in the evaluation of the assets at the end of the financial
period.
Income from Istisnaa arises from financing the contract and post-contract phases of the project. Profit from financing the
contract phase of the Istisnaa Project is recognized on the percentage of completion method. No profit is recognized on
this phase until the project has progressed to the point where the estimate of realizable profit can be reasonably
determined. Profit from financing the completed project is recognized on a time-apportioned basis over the period.

Tjarah income is recognized on a time-apportioned basis over the lease period.
Profit or loss from Salam finance is recognized when Salam commodity has been received and the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the Salam inventory have passed to a buyer and the amount of profit or loss is realized or can be
measured reliably.

The attached notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

11

45



Annual Report 2017

46

UNITED CAPITAL BANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended December 31, 2017

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12 Revenue recognition (continued)
Income from participation in syndicated facilities managed by other banks under Mudaraba contracts is recognized on an

accrual basis.

Profit from Mudaraba investments with banks and other financial institutions is recognized on an accrual basis.

Income from Musharakah financing is recognized on cash basis if such income cannot be reliably measured.
In cases where income can be reliably measured (e.g. where the Musharakah activities are in the form of deferred sales

such as Murabaha and Ijarah) then the Bank’s income from such Musharakah is recognized on the accrual basis.
Income from equity-type investment carried at cost is recognized on accrual basis.

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the dividend is established.

Fee and foreign exchange income from banking services and foreign exchange transactions are recognized when
contractually earned at the time the related services are provided.

3.13 Settlement date accounting
All regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the settlement date i.e. the date on which the asset is
delivered to the counterparty. Regular purchases and sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery

of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market place.

3.14 Return to Unrestricted Investment Account Holders

Return to Unrestricted Investment Account Holders is calculated based on the income generated from all financing and
investment assets after deducting the expense related to the investment pool “Mudarib expense”. Mudarib expenses
include all expenses directly attributed to the investment and financing activities and the general provision for finance
losses. All general and administrative expenses of the Bank including the specific provisions for finance losses are
charged to revenue allocated to the shareholders’ equity. The Bank’s “Mudarib Profit” is deducted from depositors’ share
of income before distribution.

The financing and investment income is allocated between the unrestricted investment account holders and the
shareholders' equity according to the contribution of each of the two parties in the invested funds according to the Bank's

standard policies approved by the Bank's Sharia Supervisory Committee.

3.15 Restricted investment accounts

Restricted investment accounts represent funds belonging to the Bank’s customers for which it has assumed investment
management responsibility. Such funds are invested on behalf of the customers by the Bank acting as mudarib or agent, or
the funds may be invested by the Bank in its own name under the terms of a specific Mudaraba contract with the
customers.

Restricted investment accounts and the attributable investment income or loss are not included in the Bank’s consolidated
financial statements and are directly paid to the customers after deducting of the Bank’s stated commission as agent or

profit share as Mudarib.

The attached notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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UNITED CAPITAL BANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended December 31, 2017

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.16 Commitments and Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements, but are disclosed in the notes when the
possibility of an outflow of economic resources is reasonable.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements, but are disclosed when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.

3.17 Foreign currency transactions

The consolidated financial statements are denominated in Sudanese Pounds (SDG). Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into SDG at the exchange rate prevailing on the transaction date . Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies, at balance sheet date, are translated into SDG at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date.

Realized and unrealized gains or losses on foreign exchange are credited or charged to the consolidated income statement.

The attached notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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UNITED CAPITAL BANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended December 31, 2017

Notes
4- CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS AND FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS

Cash in hand 4.1
Central Bank of Sudan - Current account 4.1
Foreign correspondent banks — Current accounts 4.1
Sub-total

Central Bank of Sudan - Statutory Cash Reserve 4.1
Cash margin on letters of credit with correspondent banks 4.1
Total

4.1 Foreign currency balances included in the above balances are as follows:

Cash in hand

Central Bank of Sudan - Current account

Foreign correspondent banks — Current accounts
Sub-total

Central Bank of Sudan - Statutory cash reserve

Cash margin on letters of credit with correspondent banks
Total

5- INVESTMENTS WITH BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

2017 2016

SDG SDG
11,775,555 23,918,751
252,750,587 305,180,112
32,421,444 67,084,091
296,947,586 396,182,954
147,457,252 85,526,804
11,908,944 3,002,719

—456.313.782 _ ASLTIIATT

2017 2016

SDG SDG
1,568,850 3,397,312
226,472,848 160,805,425
32,421,444 67,084,091
260,463,142 231,286,828
49,958,681 35,296,616
11,908,944 3,002,719

—322.330.767 ___269.586.163

These represent investment accounts placed with banks and financial institutions according to Mudaraba contracts

for renewable periods not exceeding one month. Partial and total withdrawals are allowed without significant cost.

Balances at December 31, are as follows:

Local banks
Foreign banks and financial institutions
Total

The attached notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2017 2016

SDG SDG
170,000,000 265,995,000
158,093,000 48,325,000
328,093,000 314,320,000
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UNITED CAPITAL BANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended December 31, 2017

6- INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

Comprise the following equity-type instruments: Note 2017 2016
SDG SDG

Securities at fair value through equity

Liqudity Management Fund- Not listed 6.1 11,986,714 10,320,177
Securities carried at cost

Shahama Certificates - Listed 6.2 3,771,000 49,180,500

Less : provision for shahama impairment 6.2 - (6,405,472)

Shasha Certificates - Listed 6.3 31,853,500 42,853,500

Sudan Academy Fund - Not listed 6.4 600,000 600,000
Total 48,211,214 96,548,705

Investment securities at fair value through equity:

6.1 Liqudity Management Fund: This is a Fund concerned with the liquidity management among banks , where all
banks operating in Sudan are obligated to contribute in. The Fund is managed by Financial Investment Bank with a
capital of SDG 750 Million divided into 750,000 Share (Sukuk) with nominal value of one thousand SDG .These
Sukuk are not traded in Khartoum Stock Exchange (KSE).The objective of this fund is to recover the over draft current
account with Central Bank of Sudan in local currency for all the participating banks with specific regulations ,not only
but also the Fund invests excess money in Shahama certificates.

The Shares (Sukuk) invested in this Fund are valued on a daily basis and profits are distributed on a semi-annual basis.

Investment securities carried at cost:

6.2 Shahama Certificates: Represents securities issued by the Ministry of Finance and are based on the Musharaka
contract. The certificates are traded at Khartoum Stock Exchange (KSE). They consistently recorded a yield not less
than 14% per annum since their inception in 1999. Current year yield for redeemed securities ranged between 17% to

19%.

6.3 Shasha Certificates: The Bank acquired these securities on December 2012 and March 2013 in settlement of past-
due financing collateralized by promissory notes issued by the Ministry of Finance. The securities represent investment
based on the Mudarabah contract in closed-ended renewable fund managed by the Sudan Financial Services Co. Ltd.
The fund’s contributions were allocated to acquire certain assets of Sudan Electricity Distribution Company. which
were then leased back to the Ministry of Finance under operating lease contract for a tenor of four years. At the end of
the lease term the fund’s assets are liquidated at the market prices prevailing on liquidation date. These securities are

trading in the secondary and inter-bank market. Lease rentals at 5% p.a. are expected to be distributed annually.

6.4 Sudan Academy for Financial and Banking Studies Fund: Represents the Bank’s contribution together with all
commercial banks operating in Sudan in addition to the Central Bank of Sudan in a 5 year closed ended fund managed
by Financial Investment Bank. The Fund resources will be invested in securities quoted at the Khartoum Stock
Exchange with expected return ranging from 12% to 14% per annum. It has been agreed to allocate 55% of the Fund's
return as donation to the Sudan Academy for Financial and Banking Studies and 45% to be distributed to the Fund
owners.

The attached notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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UNITED CAPITAL BANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended December 31, 2017

7- FINANCE TO CUSTOMERS, NET

7.1 By type
Deferred sales receivables :

Murabaha receivables

Istisna receivables

Tjara

Staff Financing

Total deferred sales receivables
Mudaraba & Musharaka :
Mudaraba financing

Musharaka financing

Total finance to customers

Less : deferred profit

Total finance, net of deferred profit
Less : Income suspense-past-due accounts

Less : provision for finance losses

Total finance to customers, net

7.1.1 Ijara comprise:
Cost of leased property
Cost of leased motor vehicles
Cost of leased Plant & Equipment
Deferred rental
Total

7.1.2 Movements in the provision for finance loses:

The accumulated provision for finance losses is as follows:

General Provision:
Balance at beginning of the year

Provided during the period
Balance at the end of the year

Specific Provision:

Balance at beginning of the year

Provided during the year

Recoveries of amounts previously provided
FX Changes

Balance at the end of the year

Total accumulated provision at end of the year

The attached notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes

7.1.1

2017 2016
SDG SDG
1.079.047.112 887,106,794

66,885,466 85,508,110
104,549,014 57,944,979
7.897.338 2,777,913
1,258,378930  1,033,337,796
214,772,292 148,456,963
34,382,302 129,522,864
1,507,533,524  1,311,317,623
(142,999.081)  (85.492.813)

1.364.534,443
(19.426,123)
(148,440,189)

1,225,824,810
(21,316,633)
(67,556,908)

1,196,668,131

1,136,951,269

77,737,607 39,071,362
8,085,154 15,123,560
2,760,662 -

15,965,591 3,750,057

104,549,014 57,944,979
2017 2016
SDG SDG

10,618,014 9,775,970
2,817,557 842,044

13,435,571 10,618,014

56,938,894 19,923,024

75,125,756 37,423,420

(9,659,263) (407,550)

12,599,231 -

135,004,618 56,938,894
148.440.189 67,556,908
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended December 31, 2017
7- FINANCE TO CUSTOMERS (continued)
7.1.3 Net provided (recovery) of provision for credit losses for the year
in the consolidated income statement
Notes 2017 2016
SDG SDG
General Provision:
Total provided of general provision a 2,817,557 842,044
Specific Provision:
Provided during the year 75,125,756 37,423,420
Recoveries of amounts previously provided (9,659,263) (407,550)
Total provided of the specific provision b 65,466,493 37,015,870
Net provided of the provision expense for the year (a+b) 68,284,050 37,857,914

The above provisions for finance losses are calculated in accordance with the guidelines of the Central Bank of Sudan

which require a general provision of 1% to be accounted for finance to customers not subject to specific provision.

At December 31, 2017 total past due installments, including profit margins is SDG 162,190,453 (2016: 244,551,650).

7.2 By Industry

Manufacturing
Trading
Mining

Real Estates
Agriculture
Transportation
Micro Finance
Other

Total finance

Less: deferred profit

Total finance, net of deferred profit
Less Income suspense-past-due accounts
less: Provision for finance losses

Finance to customers, net

2017 2016

SDG SDG
449,074,459 476,109,727
308,008,221 182,272,111
63,936,095 67,234,713
137,574,236 68,903,214
74,012,833 204,742,733
1,544,227 4,134,884
44,801,190 77,987,955
428,582,263 229,932,286
1,507,533,524 1,311,317,623
(142,999,081) (85,492,813)

1,364,534,443
(19,426,123)
(148,440,189)

1,225,824,810
(21,316,633)
(67,556,908)

—1.196.668.131 _ 1.136.951.269

The attached notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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UNITED CAPITAL BANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended December 31, 2017

7- FINANCE TO CUSTOMERS (continued)

Notes

7.3 By Portfolio

Performing finance to customers

Non-performing finance to customers 7.3.1
Total finance to customers

Less : deferred profit

Total finance to customers, net of deferred profit

Income suspense -past-due accounts
General provision 7.1.2
Specific provision 7.1.2

Total provision & income suspense

Finance to customers, net

2017
SDG

1,345,343,071
162,190,453

2016
SDG

1,066,765,973
244,551,650

1,507,533,524

1,311,317,623

(142,999,081)

(85,492,813)

1,364,534,443

(19,426,123

(135,004,618

1,225,824,810

21,316,633

)
(13.435,571)
)
)

(167,866,312

)
10,618,014)
)
)

88,873,541

1,196,668,131

(
(
(56,938,894
(

1

1,136,951,269

7.3.1 For the purpose of determining the percentage of past-due financing to total financing portfolio, the CBOS
defines past due financing as the total of past-due installments excluding profit margin. At December 31, 2017 the total

of past-due installments excluding profit margins amounted to SDG 144,333,275 (2016: 203,767,089).

2017 2016
8. OTHER INVESTMENTS SDG SDG
Investments in companies
Al-Hadah Grain Silos for Investments 8.1 10,705,738 10,705,738
Less: Provision for Impairment (10,705,738)

Total

(10,705,738)

8.1 Al-Hadah Grain Silos for Investments : Represents equity shares in a private company acquired in exchange of

debt.
9- OTHER ASSETS 2017 2016
SDG SDG
Cotton Inventory - 14,346,678
Commission receivable (Gezira Scheme Syndication) 3,755,850 4,677,982
Accrued income 12,612,827 25,184,832
Prepaid expenses 4,598,416 2,549,505
Deferred expenses 2,682,890 3,477,607
Sundry receivables - Seen Development Co. - 8,372,436
Sundry receivables - CBOS 1,692,690 296,677
Other 265,442 90,088
Total 25,608,115 58,995,805

The attached notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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UNITED CAPITAL BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2017

Notes 2017 2016

11- DUE TO BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS SDG SDG
Local banks 20,122,336 109,164,192
Foreign banks 61,785,350 55,711,708
Total 81.907.686 164,875,900

2017 2016

12- CUSTOMERS' DEPOSITS SDG SDG
Current accounts - Individuals 122,233,649 74,663,109
Current accounts - Corporate 622,209,215 563,274,067
Total current accounts 12.1 744,442,864 637,937,176
Margins - LCs, LGs & other deposits 12.1 32,323,556 23,640,479

Total 776.766.420 ____661.577.655

2017 2016

12.1- Foreign currency deposits included in customers' deposits: SDG SDG
Current accounts 235,826,652 196,240,034
Margins - LCs, LGs & other deposits 21,108,809 19,732,383

Total 256.935.461 __ 215972417

2017 2016

13- OTHER LIABILITIES SDG SDG
Bills payable 13,613,530 6,335,679
Zakat payable 10,654,492 10,569,938
Business profit tax payable 30,047,148 15,159,445
Provision for Staff end of service benefits 11,533,337 6,754,104
Board of Directors remuneration 5,093,514 3,622,752
Unearned commissions 5,933,104 9,287,141
Dividends payable 79,504,237 66,135,818
Payable on parallel Istisnaa 28,528,264 35,919,092
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 23,662,704 20,570,714
Funds collected form syndications managed by the Bank 10,488,078 331,867,925
Others 233,004 481,397
Total 219,291,412 506,704,005

The attached notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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UNITED CAPITAL BANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2017

14. INVESTMENT DEPOSITS OF BANKS AND
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Local banks and financial institutions

Foreign banks and financial institutions

Sub-total

Return to Unrestricted Investment Account Holders
Payments on account of profit during the year
Total

15. OTHER INVESTMENT DEPOSITS
Corporations
Individuals
Quasi-government
Sub-total
Return to Unrestricted Investment Account holders
Payments on account of profit during the year
Annual subscriptions to Deposits Guarantee Fund
Total

United Capital Ban_k

Investment deposits include balances in foreign currencies equivalent to SDG 24,390,818 (2016: 11,837,928)

16- SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized, issued and paid up share capital :

24 million shares of SDG 10 each (2016: 24 million shares of SDG 10

each)

17- SHARE PREMIUM

The share premium is not available for distribution and is subject to the rules governing the statutory reserve.

18- STATUTORY RESERVE

In accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank of Sudan, a minimum of 10% of the Bank's net income

for the year is transferred to statutory reserve until this reserve equals the paid up capital of the Bank. This reserve

is not available for distribution .

19- FOREIGN CURRENCIES REVALUATION RESERVES

In accordance with the directives of the Central Bank of Sudan, the foreign currencies revaluation gains must be

deducted from retained earnings and be disclosed in a separate line in the statement of financial position. .When
these gains become realized they must be transferred directly to retained earnings. However, we have been
directed by the Central Bank of Sudan to reverse the transaction made last year of which the foreign currencies

revaluation gains (generated in previous years) were credited to retained earnings until new directives are issued

in this regard.

The attached notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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(¥ :
2017 2016
SDG SDG
194,848,416 184,848,416
39,752,942 24,752,942
234,601,358 209,601,358
24,001,643 26,873,811
(5,899,999) (5.630,150)
__252.703.002 __ 230845019
285,654,709 117,999,919
21,689,645 16,163,064
1,000,000 4,000,000
308,344,354 138,162,983
19,249,066 20,432,286
(4,036,996) (4,276,320)
(335,342) (221,018)
323,221,082 154,097,931
2017 2016
SDG SDG
240,000,000 240,000,000
21
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UNITED CAPITAL BANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2017

20- PROPOSED DIVIDENDS
Proposed dividends

2017
SDG

45,600,000

2016
SDG

The Board of Directors has resolved, to recommend to the Annual General Assembly meeting of the shareholders to

approve distribution of cash dividends equal to 19% of the Bank's paid up capital as at December 31, 2017 (2016:

0%),from prior years retained earnings, subject to the approval of Central Bank of Sudan.

21- INCOME FROM INVESTMENT WITH BANKS AND
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Realized income from deposits with banks & financial institutions:
Local banks

Foreign banks

Accrued income from deposits with banks & financial institutions:

Local banks

Total Income from investment with banks and financials institutions

22- INCOME FROM INVESTMENT IN SECURITIES

Shahama certificates

Shasha certificates

Liquidity Management Fund

Sudan Academy for Financial and Banking Studies Fund

Total

23- INCOME FROM FINANCE TO CUSTOMERS

Income from deferred sales receivables :
Murabaha

Istisnaa/ Mugawala

Tjarah

Salam

Subtotal

Income from Mudaraba & Musharaka :
Mudaraba

Musharakah

Subtotal

Total

2017 2016
SDG SDG
10,573,805 8,121,577
423,205 293,394
10,997,010 3,414,971
5,812,874 5,054,908
16,809,884 13,469,879
2017 2016
SDG SDG
2,458,427 5,623,184
70,708 2,711,973
673,399 4,825,777
59,559 35,529
3,262,093 13,196,463
2017 2016
SDG SDG
97,563,284 83,922,243
7,805,887 3,980,726
2,446,130 3,929,043
4,037,995 3,713,952
111,853,296 95,545,964
17,371,583 574,758
11,930,090 3,197,007
29,301,673 3,771,765
141,154,969 99,317,729

The attached notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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UNITED CAPITAL BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2017

Notes 2017 2016
24- RETURN TO UNRESTRICTED INVESTMENT ACCOUNT HOLDERS SDG SDG
Unrestricted investment account holders' share of
profit before the Bank's share as Mudarib 53,016,703 50,992,409
Bank's share as Mudarib (9,820,794) (10,376,165)
Unrq?stricted Investment Account Holfiers' share of 43,195,909 40,616,244
profit after the Bank's share as Mudarib
Support provided by the Bank from its share as Mudarib - 6,312,379
Unrestricted Investment Account Holders' share 43,195,909 46,928,623
of profit after the Bank's support
Average profit distribution rates :
Investment accounts in local currency (SDG) 24% .39%
Investment accounts in foreign currencies _ 1.00% 4.64%
2017 2016
SDG SDG
25- FEE INCOME
Letters of credit 7,728,548 2,369,139
Letters of guarantees 3,368,886 6,091,153
Administration fees 3,481,166 3,261,673
Draft cheques, transfers and remittances 3,419,519 4,373,166
Management of restricted investment accounts 3,072,853 792,168
Brokerage fees 646,248 523,554
Portfolio Managed by Bank 11,539,638 7,693,468
Insurance agency commissions 3,650,751 2,221,143
Fee from other banking services 3,347,228 5,511,178
Total 40,254,837 32,836,642

26- RE-IMBURSEMENT OF FINANCE COST

Finance cost charged by correspondent banks in the years prior to 2016 due to late remittance has been
reimbursed by CBOS in 2017

2017 2016
27- FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAIN, NET SDG SDG
Transaction gain , net 156,826 (162,292)
Revaluation gain 22,654,024 17.678.375
Total 22,810,850 17,516,083

The attached notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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UNITED CAPITAL BANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2017

28- GENERAL AND ADMINSTRATIVE

EXPENSES
Bank premises expense
Communications

Maintenance of equipment, furniture & motor vehicles

Computer expenses

Marketing & promotion

Office supplies

Business travel

Legal and consultants expenses
Training

Subscriptions

Board and General Assembly expenses

Bank charges

Donations

Cash Insurance

Central Bank of Sudan penalties
Catering Service

Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Other

Total

28.1- Bank premises expense

Notes

28.1

2017 2016

SDG SDG
4,324,463 4,342,378
1,021,807 892,159
3,218,797 2,382,156
3,466,383 2,389,225
2,912,215 2,331,863
972,864 582,739
1,175,079 512,670
987,495 1,123,951
830,171 444,847
1,523,354 1,315,504
4,525,958 5,062,507
34,942 32,866
303,001 241,340
1,313,402 972,089
5,000 28,000
627,730 594,610
- 3,111
1,295,593 817,344
28.538.254 24.069.359

This item includes rent in addition to expenses related to security, water, electricity, cleaning and maintenance.

29- EARNINGS PER SHARE
Net income for the year

Weighted average number of shares outstanding

Earnings per share (in SDG)

2017 2016
SDG SDG
—26437.041 _____ 7.643.595
—24.000.000 ____24.000.000
1.10 0.32

The Bank did not issue any instruments which would have a dilutive impact on earnings per share when

exercised. Therefore the calculation of diluted earnings per share is not applicable to the Bank.

30- CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

Cash and balances with banks and financial institutions
Investment deposits with banks and financial institutions

Total

Central Bank of Sudan - Statutory cash reserve

Cash margin on letters of credit with correspondent banks

o

24

Notes

The attached notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

2017 2016
SDG SDG

456.313.782 484,712,477
328,093,000 314,320,000
784,406,782 799,032,477
(147.457.252) (85.526.804)
(11,908.944) (3.002,719)
625.040.586 710502954
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2017

31- RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties comprise the major shareholders, members of the Board of Directors, entities controlled by them
or under their joint control, associates, key management personnel and their close family members. Major
shareholders are those holding more than 5% of the Bank's issued share capital. Key management personnel are

those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling activities of the Bank,

directly or indirectly including Board Members. The related party transactions are governed by the regulations
issued by the Central Bank of Sudan. Balances with related parties arise from commercial transactions in the
normal course of business on an arm's length basis and are included within the following consolidated financial

statement captions:

2017
Major shareholders, Key Total at
directors and their Management December 31,
affiliated entities Personnel 2017
Balance sheet items: SDG SDG SDG.
Cash and balances with banks and financial institutions 1,579,163 - 1,579,163
Financing and investing assets 629,388,208 31,890,095 661,278,303
Due to banks and financial institutions 33,761,404 1,008,345 34,769,749
Current and investments deposits 211,188,043 256,681 211,444,724
Non-controlling interest - - -
Income statement items:
Profit from financing 75,029,673 211,007 75,240,680
Fees income - - -
Bank charges - - -
Key Management Personnel compensation:
Salaries and other benefits 4,492,958 16,522,302 21,015,260
Post-employment benefits - 2,273,378 2,273,378
2016
Major shareholders, Key Total at
Directors and their M D ber 31,
affiliated entities Personnel 2016

Balance sheet items: SDG SDG SDG
Cash and balances with banks and financial institutions 6,105,921 - 6,105,921
Financing and investing assets 151,584 3,997,191 4,148,775
Due to banks and financial institutions - - -
Current and investments deposits 77,407,367 51,421 77,458,788
Non-controlling interest - 1,775 1,775
Income statement items:
Profit from financing - - -
Fees income 39,685 - 39,685
Bank charges 346,371 - 346,371
Key Management Personnel compensation:
Salaries and other benefits 5,062,507 4,929,763 9,992,270
Post-employment benefits - 552,158 552,158

The attached notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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UNITED CAPITAL BANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2017

32- COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Commitments and contingencies at December 31, are as follows :
Notes

32.1.Financing - related commitments and contingencies :
Letters of credit
Letters of guarantees

Acceptances

Total financing - related commitments and contingencies

32.2 Non-financing related commitments :

Restricted investment accounts 32

Total commitments and contingencies

2017 2016

SDG SDG
81,004,199 12,010,856
120,668,672 149,600,628
201,672,871 161,611,484
478,202,777 811,137,458
679.875.648 972.748.942

The attached notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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UNITED CAPITAL BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2017

32- COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

Financing related commitments and contingencies

Financing-related commitments and contingencies mainly comprise letters of credit, guarantees, acceptance and
irrevocable commitments to extend credit.

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds are available to customers as required.

Documentary letters of credit, which are written undertakings by the Bank on behalf of a customer authorizing a
third party to draw drafts on the Bank up to a stipulated amount under specific terms and conditions, are generally
collateralized by the underlying shipments of goods to which they relate, and therefore have significantly less risk.

Acceptances comprise undertakings by the Bank to pay bills of exchange drawn on customers. The Bank expects

most acceptances to be presented before being reimbursed by the customers.

Commitments to extend credit represent the unused portion of the approved credit limits, principally in the form of
direct financing, guarantees and letters of credit. The Bank is not exposed to loss on these commitments since it
maintains the contractual right to revoke these commitments at its sole discretion at any time.

The contractual structure of the Bank’s financing-related commitments and contingencies is as follows:

within 3 months 3-6 months =~ 6m- 1 year More than 1 year Total

2017 SDG SDG SDG SDG SDG
Letters of credit 28,075,557 52,928,642 ; - 81,004,199
Letters of guarantee 110,609,328 10,020,895 - 38,449 120,668,672
Total 138,684,885 62,949,537 - 38,449 201,672,871

within 3 months |  3-6 months 6m- 1 year | More than 1 year Total

2016 SDG SDG SDG SDG SDG
Letters of credit 12,010,856 - - - 12,010,856
Letters of guarantee 29,097,604 71,688,613 6,481,712 42,332,699 149,600,628
Total 41,108,460 71,688,613 6,481,712 42,332,699 161,611,484

The attached notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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UNITED CAPITAL BANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2017

33. RESTRICTED INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS

The Bank manages restricted investment accounts, on a fiduciary basis, with assets totaling SDG 478,202,777 as
at December 31, 2017 ( 2016 : SDG 811,137,458). These transactions are governed by the regulations of the

Central Bank of Sudan. The financial statements of these accounts , and assets held in trust or in a fiduciary

capacity, are not included in the consolidated financial statements of the Bank.

The maximum Bank's risk exposure is limited to its profit share as Mudarib receivable in return for the

management of the accounts. The Bank does not guarantee the account holders equities & liabilities other than

operational risk represented by the non-compliance with investment conditions.

These accounts are invested individually as specified by the account holders and are not organized in the form of

mutual fund.

Changes in restricted investment accounts and the assets in which they are invested and classification by sector as

at 31 December are as follows:

a) By type of assets :

Murabaha finance
Istisnaa finance

Cotton Stock

Musharaka finance
Shahama Securities
Shama Certificates
Globel Investemnt House

Sudatel Shares

Total

b) By sector :
Banks and financial institutions

Individuals

Total

The attached notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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28

312,655,845 375,928,665
- 163,779,376

- 112,892,358
7,923,220 16,733,563
128,673,216 112,853,000
24,640,500 24,640,500
3,100,520 3,100,520
1,209,476 1,209,476
478,202,777 811,137,458
470,279,557 794,403,895
7,923,220 16,733,563
478,202,777 811,137,458
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2017

34. CAPITAL ADEQUACY

The Bank monitors the adequacy of its capital using the ratios and weights established by the Central Bank of
Sudan which are in line with the requirements of the Islamic Financial Services Board (IFSB) and Basel
Committee. These ratios measure capital adequacy by comparing the Bank’s eligible capital with its balance sheet

assets and commitments at a weighted amount to reflect their relative risks.

Eligible Capital Capital Adequacy Ratio

2017 2016 2017 2016

SDG SDG SDG SDG

Core capital ( Tier 1) 467,521,202 | 441,084,162 55% 44%
Core and supplementary capital ( Tier 2) 481,025,044 451,709,456 57% 45%

The Central Bank of the Sudan Circular No. 6/2009 issued at March 11, 2009 requires all banks operating in the
Sudan to maintain a Risk Weighted Asset Ratio (the 'Basel Ratio") at a minimum of 12% (Basel II : 8 %)

Tier 1 Capital comprises share capital and premium, statutory reserve and retained earnings at the period/year
end, less prescribed deductions.

Tier 2 Capital comprises the elements of Tirel in addition to fair value revaluation and a prescribed amount of
eligible portfolio (general) provisions less prescribed deductions.

The Bank has implemented the capital adequacy standard issued by the Islamic Financial Services Board (IFSB)
(which is in line with Basel II) effective January 1, 2009 as required by the Central Bank of Sudan. The Bank uses
the standardized approach of Basel II, as stipulated by the IFSB standard and the Central Bank of Sudan to
calculate the Risk Weighted Assets and required Regulatory Capital for Pillar 1 (including credit risk, market risk

and operational risk). Quarterly prudential returns are submitted to the Central Bank of Sudan showing the Capital

Adequacy Ratio.

Risk Weighted Assets

2017 2016

SDG SDG
Credit Risk 896,115,306 1,310,274,130
Operational risk 202,714,298 172,001,012
Market risk 69,551,858 179,895,130
Total Pillar 1 - Risk Weighted Assets 1,168,381,462 1,662,170,272

The attached notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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UNITED CAPITAL BANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2017

35- FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

35.1

35.2

35.2.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments cover all financial assets and liabilities of the Bank. Financial assets include cash and
balances with banks and other financial institutions, investment in securities, financing to customers and certain
other assets. Financial liabilities include customers’ accounts, due to banks and other financial institutions, and
certain other liabilities. Financial instruments also include unrestricted investment accounts and contingent
liabilities and commitments included in off balance sheet items.

By its nature the Bank's activities are principally related to the use of financial instruments. The Bank accepts
deposits from customers for various periods and seeks to earn profit by investing these funds in quality assets. The
Bank also seeks to increase its profit spread by making investments in diversified products and services and by
consolidating short and long-term investment strategies while maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet all claims

that might fall due.

Risk management

Risk is an integral part of the Bank’s business and is critical to the Bank’s continuing success and profitability.
The essence of effective risk management is to strike an optimal balance between return and risk that lead to
enhance depositors and shareholders value through business profits commensurate with the risk appetite of the
Bank.

The authority of risk management of the Bank is vested in the Risk and Audit Committees, whose members are
nominated by the Board. The Risk Committee assists the Board of Directors and the senior management in
performing their risk management oversight function. The Committee is responsible to ensure that the Bank
adopts, maintains and applies appropriate risk management policies and procedures. The process of risk
management is carried out by the Risk Management Department which is mandated with identifying, quantifying
and assessing all risks and setting appropriate prudential limits within the parameters of the overall risk strategy
approved by the Board.

The Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring compliance with the Bank’s risk management policies and
procedures and for reviewing the adequacy of the risk management framework. The Audit Committee is assisted in
these functions by the Internal Audit and Compliance Departments.

The risk management strategy in respect of each of these types of risks is set out below:

1 Profit rate risk

The profit rate risk refers to the risk due to change of profit rates, which might affect the future earnings of the
Bank. Exposure to profit rate risk is managed by the Bank through diversification of assets portfolio and by
matching the maturities of assets and liabilities.

In line with the policy approved by the Board of Directors, the Bank's Assets and Liabilities Management
Committee (ALCO) performs regular reviews of the assets and liabilities situation of the Bank in order to ensure
that the maturity gap between assets and liabilities is maintained at minimum level and also to ensure that
financing and investments are made for quality assets at higher rates of return.

The attached notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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UNITED CAPITAL BANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2017

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

35.2.2 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge and obligation causing the other
party to incur a financial loss.

The Bank attempts to manage its credit risk exposure through diversification of its financing and investment
activities to avoid undue concentration of risk with individuals or group of customers in specific locations or
economic sectors. The Bank pursues its policies to safeguard its interest and in a prudent manner obtains tangible
or intangible securities and collaterals for financing, investments and contingent commitments. The Bank controls
the credit risk arising from its financing and investment activities through its risk management and the approval

process and use of risk control limits and monitoring procedures.

The exposure to any one customer including banks and financial institutions is controlled by a set off limits for
each major customer covering on and off balance sheet exposures. Actual exposure of the customers is regularly
monitored against the limits approved for such customers. Credit risk exposure is also managed through regular
analysis of the ability of the customer to meet the repayment obligations and by making appropriate changes to the
limits where needed.

Note 7.2 discloses the economic sector distribution of financing to customers.

35.2.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of a bank being unable to meet its funding requirements. Liquidity risk can be caused by
market disruptions or credit downgrades, which may cause certain sources of funding to cease immediately. To
mitigate this risk, the Bank has diversified its sources of funding and maintained a diversified portfolio of high

quality liquid assets, and readily marketable securities.

The maturity profile of the assets and liabilities of the Bank are disclosed below. The contractual maturities of
assets and liabilities have been determined on the basis of the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. Management monitors the maturity profile to ensure that adequate liquidity is
maintained.

The attached notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

31



Annual Report 2017

UNITED CAPITAL BANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2017

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The maturity profile of the assets and liabilities at December 31, 2017 is as follows:

2017
within 3 months ~ 3-6 months 6m- 1 year | More than 1 year Total

Assets SDG SDG SDG SDG SDG
Cash and bal ith bank

ash and baances With BAES 456,313,782 - - - 456,313,782
and financial institutions
Investments with banks and ¢ 193 500 50,000,000 - - 328,093,000
financial institutions
Investments in securities 48,211,214 - - - 48,211,214
Finance to customers, net 129,143,789 = 241,197,225 | 572,447,341 253,879,776 | 1,196,668,131
Other investments - - - - -
Other assets 11,420,876 2,233,638 1,676,689 10,276,912 25,608,115
Property and equipment, net - - - 66,694,669 66,694,669
TOTAL ASSETS 923,182,661 293,430,863 574,124,030 330,851,357  2,121,588,911
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Due to banks and financial 36,885,195 8,035,725 | 16,071,450 20,915,316 81,907,686
1nstitutions
Customers' deposits 776,766,420 - - - 776,766,420
Other Liabilities 89,452,556 18,334,041 | 93,463,350 18,041,465 219,291,412
Equlty of unrestricted 475,010,426 = 69,229,013 30,684,645 1,000,000 575,924,084
investment account holders
Non-controlling interest - - . 26,393 26,393
Shareholders' equity - - - 467,672,916 467,672,916
TOTAL LIABILITIES, AND

9 S, AN 1,378,114,597 95,598,779 = 140,219,445 507,656,090 2,121,588,911

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

The attached notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2017

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The maturity profile of the assets and liabilities at December 31, 2016 is as follows:

Assets

Cash and balances with banks
and financial institutions
Investments with banks and
financial institutions
Investments in securities

Finance to customers, net
Other investments

Other assets

Property and equipment, net

TOTAL ASSETS

within 3 months

SDG

484,712,477

309,320,000

77,667,205
289,986,987

40,132,781

1,201,819,450

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

Due to banks and financial
institutions

Customers' deposits
Other Liabilities
Equity of unrestricted

investment account holders
Non-controlling interest

Shareholders' equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES, AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

55,711,708

661,577,655
415,962,480

266,284,525

1,399,536,368

2016

3-6 months 6m- 1 year | More than 1 year

SDG SDG SDG
5,000,000 - -

710,500 17,267,000 904,000

303,285,232 | 122,548,180 421,130,870

10,458,827 2,370,769 6,033,428

- - 67,695,502

319,454,559 | 142,185,949 495,763,800

101,736,592 7,427,600 -

598,709 530,450 89,612,366
44,179,640 72,799,889 1,678,896
- - 22,910

- - 441,100,338
146,514,941 80,757,939 532,414,510

The attached notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Total
SDG

484,712,477

314,320,000

96,548,705
1,136,951,269

58,995,805
67,695,502
2,159,223,758

164,875,900

661,577,655
506,704,005

384,942,950

22,910
441,100,338

2,159,223,758
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UNITED CAPITAL BANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2017

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

35.2.4 Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign
currency exchange rates.

The Bank is exposed to foreign currency risk on transactions that are denominated in a currency other than the
Sudanese Pound. The Bank has a set of limits to the level of exposure by currency and in total which are
monitored on a daily basis to ensure that the net exposure is kept at an acceptable level.

At year end the Bank had the following significant net exposure denominated in foreign currencies in equivalence to
SDG:

Dec. 31, 2017 Dec. 31, 2016

Currency

Long (short) Long (short)
Euro (10,540,139) 46,681,987
US Dollar (4,364,378) 101,250,900
Other currencies 102,507,689 44,472,242

Long position indicates that the assets in a foreign currency are higher than the liabilities in the same currency; the
opposite applies to short position.

35.2.5 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of an asset will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices.

Market risk is managed on the basis of pre-determined asset allocations across various asset categories, a
continuous appraisal of market conditions and trends and management’s estimate of long and short term changes
in fair value.

The Bank is not exposed to material risk in terms of the re-pricing of its liabilities since, in accordance with
Islamic Shariah, the Bank does not provide a guaranteed contractual rate of return to its depositors.

35.2.6 Risk of managing customers’ investments

The Bank provides investment administration services to third parties in relation to funds provided by them. These
services give rise to legal and operational risk. Such risks are mitigated through detailed daily procedures to ensure
compliance.

The attached notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Year ended 31 December 2017

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

35.2.7 Operational and other risks

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss due to an event or action causing failure of technology, process
infrastructure, personnel, and other risks having an impact on the operations. The Bank seeks to minimize actual or
potential losses from operational risks failure through a framework of policies and procedures that are approved by
its Board of Directors and are applied to identify, assess, control and manage operational risk. Controls include
effective segregation of duties, access, authorization and reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment
processes. Other types of risks to which the Bank is exposed such as regulatory risk, legal risk, and reputation risk.
Regulatory risk is controlled through the framework of compliance policies and procedures. Legal risk is managed
through the effective use of internal and external legal advisors. Reputation risk is controlled through regular
examinations of issues that are considered to have reputation repercussions for the Bank, with guidelines and

policies being issued as appropriate.
The operational risk function of the Bank is in line with the Central Bank of Sudan instructions regarding the

general guidelines for internal controls and sound practices for managing and supervising operational risk in banks.

36. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

For the years ended at December 31, 2017 and 2016 the Bank principally provided banking services, including
financing and deposit taking to corporate and institutional customers with insignificant portion of its business
directed to individual customers mainly having employment relationship with the Bank's institutional customers.
Therefore no primary segment information is presented since the Bank's total assets, liabilities, operating income
and expenses, commitments and contingencies as reported in the consolidated financial statements at December
31,2017 and 2016 are principally derived from the Bank's corporate and institutional business.

Also, no secondary segment information is presented as the Bank operates only in the Republic of the Sudan and

does not conduct operations in other geographical segments.

37. SHARIAH SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Bank's activities are subject to the supervision of a Shariah Supervisory Committee which is appointed by the
General Assembly. The Committee supervises the Bank's transactions to ensure compliance with Shariah rules,
prepares and submits annual report to the General Assembly.

38. COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Certain 2016 comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation. Such

reclassifications did not have an impact on the previously reported net profit or retained earnings.

The attached notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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39. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Bank determines and declares the daily foreign exchange rate within specific range around an indicative rate
determined by the Central Bank of Sudan plus an additional incentive calculated at a certain percentage of the rate
declared by the Bank (31 December 2017: 123%). The declared rate plus incentive is used for all transactions
except for certain transactions, determined by the Central Bank, while all the financial assets and liabilities of the

bank recorded in foreign currencies are revaluated using the declared exchange rate only (without incentive)
In January 21, 2018 the Central Bank of Sudan decided to cancel the additional incentive and increase the

indicative rate. Accordingly, the declared rate whereby all the banking transactions and the revaluation of the
financial assets and liabilities are carried out had increased to SDG 20 against the US Dollar ( Dec 31, 2017 : SDG
8.9 against the US Dollar). This resulted in a revaluation gain of about SDG 57 million. In February 6, 2018, the
Central Bank decided to increase the indicative rate again to SDG 30 against the US Dollar, resulting in a

revaluation gain of about SDG 51 million.

The attached notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

o

36



United Capital Bank
c\! aniall el i

Directory of Head office, branches and subsidiary companies




Annual Report 2017

72 (o)






